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Job Search Strategies  

 

4 Steps to your Career Goals (courtesy of Kent State Career Services http://career.kent.edu)  

1. Assess Yourself 

What are my SKILLS? What are my INTERESTS? What are my VALUES? What is my 

PREFERRED WORK ENVIRONMENT? 

2. Explore Majors & Careers 

Do research about the major you’re in and/or the fields in which you think you have interest. 

(Internet, your campus career center, library) 

Talk about it with faculty, advisors, alumni, other professionals and family members. Professional 

Associations – attend meetings or visit websites.  

Obtain First hand experience through volunteering, internships, or even just shadowing for a few 

hours.  

3. Make Career Decisions 

Do a goals exercise to evaluate what you look for out of life and how that can be expressed in a 

career. No career will meet all your needs so be sure to find ways to meet your needs outside of 

work.  

4. Advance in Your Career 

• Get organized and establish goals 

• Network, Network, Network 

• Know organizational priorities – Work within the organization to meet its goals and 

yours 

• Make it easy to get the promotion – Take on more than you have to. 

• Be visible – without boasting, make sure you’re being noticed.   

• Gain co-workers’ trust – be a team player  

• Learn from your mistakes – take time to ask questions and get formal training; take 

advantage of tuition reimbursement benefits, online learning, and continuing education 

• Find your niche and stay upbeat – show how your talents are useful in your department.  

 

The pathway to a career in international education is not a direct one. Many DSOs come 

from varied backgrounds. The key is conveying how your qualifications, education and 

background are transferable into this field. The skills can be learned!   

 

Transferable Skills 

• Organization 

• Communication (written and oral; cross-cultural; across campus or community) 

• Attention to detail 

• Ability to multi-task 

• Ability to read and interpret rules, regulations, laws or other complex language 

• Ability to deal with difficult situations 

• Event-programming 

• Computer skills 

• Patience 

• Compassion 

• Problem solving skills 

 



Some Typical Qualifications (or what to look for in an internship) 

• Bachelors degree expected; Masters degree preferred 

• Experience working with people (especially students) from diverse cultural 

backgrounds 

• Cross-cultural sensitivity 

• Understanding of US immigration regulations pertaining to F-1, J-1, maybe H-1B 

• Knowledge of the Student and Exchange Visitor Information System (SEVIS) 

• Experience living/studying/traveling abroad 

• Fluency in second language 

 

Job search strategies 

• Tailor your resume to the position for which you are applying. 

• Look at other examples of resumes and ask for feedback on yours. 

• Conduct your job search like you conducted your search for a college  or 

university – find a fit for you. 

• Look at postings daily 

o NAFSA job registry (http://www.nafsa.org/job_registry_3)  

o Chronicle of Higher Education (http://chronicle.com/jobs/) 

o Higher Education Jobs (http://www.higheredjobs.com/) 

o Career Builder (www.careerbuilder.com)  

o Academic360.com (www.academic360.com)  

• Make sure everyone knows that you are looking for a job! 

• Network everywhere you go – even before you are looking for a job.  

o Networking means relationship building – NOT begging for help only 

when you need it.  

• Do not be fooled by job titles – there are a lot of different names for the same type 

of position. Some with lousy names might be great jobs and great titles do not 

imply great jobs.  

• Know what YOU want out of the job (eg, location, size of school, size of 

international population, salary, time spent on immigration advising versus other 

things such as programming) 

• Send out your resume, even if there is not currently a job available. 

• When you get an interview, prepare for it. Research the company or school so that 

you know why it is a good fit for you.  

• Conduct the interview in a relaxed manner. Try to see if the job would be a good 

fit for you.  

• Take notes following the interview so you remember exactly how it went. 

• Send a thank you note or letter following an interview.  
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Ethical/Situational Dilemmas 
 

Dilemma 1 

 

A student of yours, Frederico, comes to you the last day of registration and tells you that he is 

not enrolled full time. The student is in his third year so he ought to know by now that it is a 

requirement for F-1 students to enroll full time. You talk with him about his situation and find 

out that he has recently had some trouble and had to move out of University housing and move 

off campus to an apartment.  He’s been trying for a month now to find a roommate but has not 

been successful and is worried about his ability to afford the rent and other living expenses. In 

the mean time, registration and the start of the semester happened, and the deadline is here.  

a) What questions would you ask the student? 

b) Which offices would you contact?  

c) What solutions could you recommend for the student? 

 

Dilemma 2 

 

Mohammed has recently expressed to you his frustration about a teacher of his. He describes one 

class in which she was discussing stereotypes with a group of international students. During the 

class session she kept using the example that Saudi Arabian and other Middle Eastern students 

are often viewed as “terrorists” or are likely to be involved with anti-American sentiment. He 

says that things like this have been said in subsequent classes. Mohammed is concerned that he is 

being unfairly criticized since he is a citizen of Saudi Arabia.  

a) What do you say to calm Mohammed? 

b) What resources might you invite him to seek since he feels that way?  

c) Is it appropriate for you to intervene and contact the instructor? 

d) How would you approach her if you do?  

e) Would you involve her supervisor?  

f) What is your primary concern in this situation?  

 

Dilemma 3 

 

A student comes in for an appointment and does not like the news you are giving him.  He gets 

upset, swears, and slams his fist on your desk.  You see in his file that he has recently had a run-

in with the police regarding a bar fight and public intoxication.  You are beginning to feel very 

uncomfortable.  He is sitting between you and the door.   

a) Do you try to calm him down? 

b) Do you get out of there? 

c) Do you address his behavior (now or later)? 

d) How can you avoid this type of situation in the future? 
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Dilemma 4 

 

As a graduate student, you became pretty good friends with Vineet, an F-1 student from India 

who was in many of your classes. Now you are a Foreign Student Advisor, and Vineet has 

continued his studies at your university as a PhD student. Vineet comes to your office on the last 

day of Fall classes and tells you that he is leaving tomorrow to visit India for the winter break.  

His visa is expired so he will need to apply for a new visa while he is abroad.  However, his 

funding has changed, so he will need an updated I-20.  In order to make him a new I-20, you 

need to see his updated financial documentation.  Unfortunately, he does not have it with him.  

He is leaving tomorrow morning and his visa appointment is two days later.  He asks you if you 

can just make the I-20 and he will bring you his financial documents when he gets back.  After 

all, he helped you out with one of your term papers last year in grad school.  He will even buy 

you dinner when he gets back to thank you for the favor.   

a) Does your office have a policy regarding financial documentation, and do you ever 

make exceptions? 

b) Could Vineet provide new financial documentation before leaving if he needs to? 

c) Is dinner a bribe?  Is this acceptable? 

d) (How) can you do what's right and remain friends with Vineet?  Which is more 

important? 

 

Dilemma 5 

 

A student comes to your office and begins discussing a complicated immigration issue that is in 

the “grey zone.” You realize from the notes in his file that another advisor has already spoken 

with him several times, and the student is trying to get a different answer from you. You do not 

have a set office policy on the particular issue. How do you respond, and what are the possible 

implications?  

a) Do you always hold the line with what your other colleague said, even if you would have 

advised the student differently?   

b) Do you still meet with the student, or do you tell them to continue meeting with the other 

advisor?    

c)  Do you discuss the situation with the other advisor before talking with the student?  

 

Dilemma 6 

 

You are at home at 10:30 p.m. A student that you know well has your home phone number, so he 

calls and apologizes for disturbing you at home. The student says it is an urgent immigration 

situation and only has a couple questions.  What do you do?  

a) Tell the student to call you tomorrow at the office.  

b) Listen to the situation, then decide if it is urgent or not. If it is urgent, answer the question 

to the best of your ability without having the student’s file or SEVIS record available.     

c) Answer the questions regardless of whether it’s urgent or not because he’s one of your 

friends.  
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19 tips we wish someone had given us before we started 
 

1. You don’t need to know everything. 

2. Grey areas abound. 

3. Immigration advising involves a good deal of paperwork. 

4. You will develop “pen pals.” 

5. Don’t over-commit and burn out. 

6. Develop a relationship with your supervisor(s) and talk openly about frustrations or 

issues. 

7. Travel while you are still a student! 

8. It can be challenging to balance friendships and work relationships. 

9. Don’t be afraid to suggest new ideas. 

10. If you are a creative person, you will need a creative outlet, either at work or at home.  

11. Share funny/challenging situations with colleagues because they can appreciate these 

situations. 

12. Unfortunately, students will sometimes screw up, lie, or not do what you tell them.   

13. It’s hard to give bad news… and you will have to give bad news (see #12). 

14. You’ll be someone’s hero and someone else’s nightmare (and sometimes both for the 

same student). 

15. Build relationships with key people on campus so you have an ally or a contact in times 

of need.  

16. Ask how students are doing, how their lives are going, what their research is about; not 

just about their immigration status.  

17. If you see the need for a program or a service, take the initiative to create it. 

18. If you don’t know the answer to something, research it. It’s likely someone else could 

benefit from it as well.  

19. Be Prepared – Students frequently do things at the last minute. 
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Allies on the Journey  
 

It is beneficial to build relationships with people in other departments and areas of campus and off 

campus so you have a resource when you have questions, have a situation in which you could use some 

extra hands, or need help with paperwork (and you will need that). Sometimes your best allies can be 

departmental secretaries because they control the information flow. My recommendation is to go 

through the directory and seek the names of these wonderful folks. Then, introduce yourself in person if 

possible, or by email if not. If they know you are new to the campus and are taking time to introduce 

yourself to them, then they are more likely to help you (and remember you) when you call them.  

 

On Campus 

– Academic Departments 

• Some examples include the College Arts and Sciences, College of Business, 

Department of Chemistry, Department of Physics, Dean of the College of Arts 

and Sciences.  

– Business Offices  

• Bursar, Registrar, Financial Aid, Dining Services, Residence Life, Payroll, 

Human Resources, Benefits, and Information Technology.  

– Admissions Office 

– Student Involvement/Student Activities  

• If you can collaborate on programming or utilizing resources available to this 

area, you will be saving some time and energy (and possibly money).  

– International Student Clubs.  

• Clubs/student organizations are helpful for collaboration on programs and 

dissemination of important information to club members as well as helping with 

new student arrival (temporary housing, airport pickup, etc.)  

Off Campus 

– NAFSAns 

• Join the RegionVI Listserv and the Professional Networks Knowledge 

Communities 

• Attend conferences and collect business cards to contact folks with questions. 

Make friends!  

• Region VI Leadership http://www.region6.nafsa.org/leadership.html  

– Other regional schools with similar composition 

• Indiana: http://www.che.state.in.us/ 

• Kentucky: http://cpe.ky.gov/  

• Ohio: http://www.regents.state.oh.us/index.html  

– Government Agencies – make a local contact at each of these agencies and any others 

you might find useful in your area.  

• SSA, BMV/DMV, Police Department 

– Community Volunteers  

• Connect with community organizations such as Rotary International, The 

Kiwanis, and others who have an interest in promoting/assisting with 

International Education. 

• Area churches, temples, or mosques may also be a valuable resource; however, 

be cautious about recruiting them without being completely clear about how they 

can discuss their religions with your students, if at all.  
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Listservs and Newsletters (some of the many available) 
 

Government Agencies 

International Education Week http://iew.state.gov/  

SEVIS Update 

US Citizenship and Immigration Services (variety of updates available by email) 

http://www.uscis.gov/graphics/exec/cns/index.asp  

USCIS Today Past Issues http://www.uscis.gov/graphics/publicaffairs/uscistoday.htm  

US Department of State Visa Bulletin: To be placed on the Department of State’s E-mail subscription list for 

the “Visa Bulletin”, please send an E-mail to the following E-mail address: listserv@calist.state.gov and in 

the message body type: Subscribe Visa-Bulletin First name/Last name (example: Subscribe Visa-Bulletin 

Sally Doe). To be removed from the Department of State’s E-mail subscription list for the “Visa Bulletin”, 

send an e-mail message to the following E-mail address: listserv@calist.state.gov and in the message body 

type: Signoff Visa-Bulletin 
US ICE Email Signup http://www.ice.gov/exec/signup/index.asp 

 

Other non-law firm listservs 
IIE Interactive Listserv 
http://iienetwork.org/page/27503/index.v3page;jsessionid=1ft82rxo9i6ne?a_v=ra&a_vh=false&a_mid=109817  
Inter-L International Education Listserv http://groups.yahoo.com/group/inter-l/  

International Education Information Listservs from StudentAffairs.com 

http://www.studentaffairs.com/lists/intern.html  

NAFSA Professional Networks http://www.nafsa.org/knowledge_community_network.sec  

NAFSA Region VI Listserv http://www.region6.nafsa.org/contact.html  

United States Immigration Support - http://www.usimmigrationsupport.org/news.html  

VisaPRO Immigration Newsletter http://www.visapro.com/Newsletter/Immigration-Newsletter-September-2006.asp  

 

Law firms offering legal expertise – generally deals a lot with employment law or processing 

PERM but some may have a question/answer portion which can be helpful.  

 

Chang & Boos Immigration Monthly http://www.americanlaw.com/ilw.html  

Subscribe to Chang & Boos http://www.americanlaw.com/subscribe.html  

Hammond Law Group http://www.hammondlawfirm.com/mailing_list.htm  

ILW.COM http://www.ilw.com/monthly/index.shtm  

Masuda Funai Eifert & Mitchell, Ltd. http://www.masudafunai.com/   

Miller Mayer Immigration Newsletters http://www.millermayer.com/resources/newslettercont.htm  

Sidley Immigration Update http://www.sidley.com/db30/cgi-bin/pubs/Immigration_Update_091806.pdf  

 To subscribe, email send your name, company or firm name and email address to cschreiber@sidley.com.  

Siskind Susser & Bland http://www.visalaw.com/bulletin.html  

 

Note: There are many listservs and sources of information available online. Use caution in 

taking advice or information from ANY of these sources. It is important to double check 

the regulations and/or NAFSA Advisors manual when you are advising students.  
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NAFSA Acronyms 

See “Acronyms” Handout.  

For more acronyms, visit the following website:  

http://www.nafsa.org/about.sec/organization_leadership/about_international_education/guide_to

_acronyms  

 

NAFSA Knowledge Communities 

NAFSA Recently re-organized its internal structure and created five organizational areas of the 

organization. These are called Knowledge Communities (KC). They are listed below for your 

edification.  

 

EA KC Education Abroad Knowledge Community 

IEL KC International Educational Leadership Knowledge Community 

ISSS KC International Student and Scholar Services Knowledge Community 

KCCC Knowledge Communities Coordinating Committee 

RAP KC Recruiting, Admissions, and Preparation Knowledge Community 

TLS KC Teaching, Learning and Scholarship Knowledge Community 

  

 For more information on these professional networks or how to sign up for listservs, visit 

NAFSA’s website at http://www.nafsa.org/knowledge_community_network.sec  

 

Training and Resources (order online at www.nafsa.org) 

NAFSA Advisor’s Manual of Federal Regulations Affecting Foreign Students and Scholars 

 

NAFSA’s F-1 for Beginners Professional Practice Workshop   

Next held December 11, 2006  

KCTCS System Office / 300 North Main Street, Versailles, KY  

Cost: KCTCS Members: $154 Others: $245 
 

SEVIS Help Desk Number 

 1-800-892-4829 

 

Regulatory Ombudsperson 

Case specific assistance on a region-by-region basis. Report through http://issuenet.nafsa.org/.  

 You do not need to be a member of NAFSA but you’ll need to create a login and an account.  

Debra Lyons is Region VI Reg. Ombuds for Student Issues 

Susan Snyder Salmon is Region VI Reg. Ombuds for Non-Student Issues (term ends in 2006) 

 

KC-ISSS Representative  

Bounce an idea off of another professional – non-case specific.  

Krista Mccallum Beatty and Jill Jean-Baptiste are the KC-ISSS Reps for 2007.  

 

IssueNet – to report problems or issues to NAFSA for advocacy www.issuenet.nafsa.org  
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Useful Websites 
 
Immigration, Entry, Government Agencies 

US Department of State www.state.gov  

Dept. of State, Bureau of Consular Affairs http://travel.state.gov 

Visa Wait Times http://travel.state.gov/visa/temp/wait/tempvisitors_wait.php 

I-901 SEVIS Fee http://www.ice.gov/sevis/i901/faq3.htm  

To pay the SEVIS fee: https://www.fmjfee.com 

US Department of Homeland Security http://www.dhs.gov/dhspublic/ 

Citizenship and Immigration Services www.uscis.gov  

InfoPass http://infopass.uscis.gov/ 

Immigration and Customs Enforcement www.ice.gov 

Customs and Border Protection www.cbp.gov   

POE Codes (airport): http://www.airport-technology.com/codes/  

POE Codes (immigration): http://foia.state.gov/masterdocs/09FAM/09NX9.PDF  

CBP Deferred Inspection http://www.cbp.gov/xp/cgov/toolbox/contacts/deferred_inspection/ 

US-VISIT http://www.dhs.gov/dhspublic/display?theme=91 

US-VISIT Ports of Entry 

http://www.dhs.gov/interweb/assetlibrary/USVISIT_PortsOfEntry_Dec2005_columns.pdf  

Special Registration http://www.ice.gov/pi/specialregistration/index.htm 

Exchange Visitor Program, DOS 

http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/about/22CFR62.pdf 

J-1 212(e) Visa Waiver https://j1visawaiverrecommendation.state.gov/ 

J-1 Skills List http://exchanges.state.gov/education/jexchanges/participation/skills_list.pdf 

Social Security Administration http://www.ssa.gov/ 

 

Regulations and Guidance 

Electronic Code of Federal Regulations:  

http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&tpl=%2Findex.tpl  

ICE – SEVIS Information http://www.ice.gov/sevis/ 

SEVP Guidance on Employment, Transfers, SSN http://www.ice.gov/sevis/faq.htm 

Dual Citizenship http://www.richw.org/dualcit/?from  

Dept. of Health & Human Services Poverty Guidelines 

http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty/06poverty.shtml 

Visa validity following a break in studies http://travel.state.gov/visa/temp/types/types_2941.html 

Siskind Susser Bland website http://visalaw.com 

Immigration Daily http://www.ilw.com/ 

List of Immigration Acts http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_United_States_Immigration_Acts 

Undocumented Aliens Enrolling 

http://www.twmlaw.com/index2.php?this_cat=1&this_sub_cat=1&article_id=63 

F-1 Transfer Guidance http://www.ice.gov/sevis/f_1_transfers.htm  

NAFSA www.nafsa.org 

NAFSA Region VI http://region6.nafsa.org/ 

Helpful resources and links by Immigration Specialists  

http://www.immspec.com/helpful-resources.htm  

Inter-L Useful Links http://groups.yahoo.com/group/inter-l/links  

 



Travel Outside the US  
Canadian visitor visa http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/visit/visas.html  

Foreign Embassies in the US http://www.state.gov/misc/10125.htm 

Visa Reciprocity (fees and length) http://travel.state.gov/visa/reciprocity/index.htm 

List of all countries recognized by U.S. Dept. of State: http://www.state.gov/s/inr/rls/4250.htm  

US Embassies or Consulates in Foreign Countries http://usembassy.state.gov/  

 

Employment Information  
Current H-1B Cap Count http://www.uscis.gov/graphics/services/tempbenefits/cap.htm 

Case Status and Processing Dates https://egov.immigration.gov/cris/jsps/index.jsp  

Dept. of Labor (PERM) http://ows.doleta.gov/foreign/perm.asp 

Employer Guidelines for Hiring Aliens 

http://www.wildmanharrold.com/labor_library/Immigration_Reform_and_Control_Act.htm 

 

International Student Taxes 
International Student Taxes (IRS) 

http://www.irs.gov/businesses/small/international/article/0,,id=96431,00.html 

University of Texas at Austin – Int’l Student Tax Info http://www.utexas.edu/international/taxes/ 

U of Colorado Tax Reference Manual http://www.cusys.edu/pbs/downloads/TaxRef-Intl-

Visitors.pdf 

Alien Liability for Medicare and Social Security Taxes 

http://www.irs.gov/businesses/small/international/article/0,,id=129427,00.html 

What to do if employer withholds Social Security http://www.irs.gov/faqs/faq13-5.html 

Arctic International – Tax Preparation Software (at cost) http://www.arcticintl.com/  

 

Miscellaneous Links  

AMIDEAST http://www.amideast.org/ 

BBC World News http://news.bbc.co.uk/ 

CIA World Fact-book https://www.cia.gov/cia/publications/factbook/index.html 

Currency Converter: http://www.xe.com/ucc/  

Date Calculator: http://www.timeanddate.com/date/dateadd.html  

Earth Calendar – it lists holidays in different countries for every day of the year: 

http://www.earthcalendar.net/index.php 

Education USA http://educationusa.state.gov/about.htm 
G-Chart – time zones and international blogs http://www.gchart.com/ 

Icebreakers http://www.partygamecentral.com 

Inside Higher Ed http://insidehighered.com 

Institute of International Education http://www.iie.org/ 
MLA Language Map http://www.mla.org/census_main 

Open Doors http://opendoors.iienetwork.org/  

Scholarships & Grants for Int’l Students https://www.isoa.org/list_scholarships.aspx 

Time Zones & World Clock http://www.timeanddate.com/worldclock/ 

 

IE Research  
IE Research Clearinghouse http://www.bc.edu/bc_org/avp/soe/cihe/ihec/ 

Australian IE Research 

http://aei.dest.gov.au/AEI/PublicationsAndResearch/ResearchDatabase/Default.htm 

Annotated Bibliography on IE Research http://webpages.charter.net/ktamblyn/Bibliography.htm 

Journal of Studies in IE http://jsi.sagepub.com/ 


